
 
 
 
 

AGENDA  
 
 
Meeting: Environment Select Committee 

Place: Council Chamber, Bradley Road, Trowbridge 

Date: Tuesday 10 January 2012 

Time: 10.30 am 

 

 
Please direct any enquiries on this Agenda to Kieran Elliott, of Democratic Services, 
County Hall, Trowbridge, direct line 01225 718504 or email 
kieran.elliott@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 
Press enquiries to Communications on direct lines (01225)713114/713115. 
 
This Agenda and all the documents referred to within it are available on the Council’s 
website at www.wiltshire.gov.uk  
 

 
Membership: 
 

Cllr Chuck Berry 
Cllr Rosemary Brown 
Cllr Nigel Carter 
Cllr Christopher Cochrane 
Cllr Peter Doyle 
Cllr Jose Green 
Cllr Alan Hill 
 

Cllr Chris Humphries 
Cllr Tom James MBE 
Cllr Howard Marshall 
Cllr Ian McLennan 
Cllr Stephen Oldrieve 
Cllr Leo Randall 
 

 

 
Substitutes: 
 

Cllr Jane Burton 
Cllr Trevor Carbin 
Cllr Brian Dalton 
Cllr Bill Douglas 
Cllr Nick Fogg 
Cllr Russell Hawker 
 

Cllr Charles Howard 
Cllr George Jeans 
Cllr Julian Johnson 
Cllr Jeffrey Ody 
Cllr Anthony Trotman 
 

 

 
 
 
 



 PART I 

 Items to be considered while the meeting is opened to the public 

 

1. Apologies and Substitutions  

 

2.   Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 1 - 8) 

 To confirm and sign the minutes of the Environment Select Committee held on 01 
November 2011 (copy attached). 

 

3. Declarations of Interests  

 To receive any declarations of personal or prejudicial interests or dispensations 
granted by the Standards Committee. 

 

4.   Chairman's Announcements  

 

5.   Public Participation and Councillors Questions  

 The Council welcomes contributions from members of the public. 
 
Statements 
 
If you would like to make a statement at this meeting on any item on this agenda, 
please register to do so at least 10 minutes prior to the meeting. Up to 3 speakers 
are permitted to speak for up to 3 minutes each on any agenda item.  Please 
contact the officer named above for any further clarification. 
 
Questions  
 
To receive any questions from members of the public or members of the Council 
received in accordance with the constitution. Those wishing to ask questions are 
required to give notice of any such questions in writing to the officer named 
above no later than 5pm on Tuesday 03 January 2012.  Please contact the 
officer named on the first page of this agenda for further advice.  Questions may 
be asked without notice if the Chairman decides that the matter is urgent. 
 
Details of any questions received will be circulated to Committee members prior 
to the meeting and made available at the meeting and on the Council’s website. 

 

6. Draft Wiltshire Core Strategy  

 Cabinet in January will be asked to approve the pre-submission draft Wiltshire 
Core Strategy for the purpose of undertaking the final stage of formal 
consultation. The document is then scheduled to be considered by full Council. 
 
The Cabinet member and supporting officers will give a presentation to the 
committee outlining the key areas for consideration, following which members will 
have an opportunity to question the Cabinet member on the strategy. 



 
The Committee will then have the opportunity to feed any recommendations to 
Cabinet and Council.  

 

7. Waste Collection Service Harmonisation Update (Pages 9 - 20) 

 The Committee considered a report in July 21, 2011 which provided an overview 
of the proposals for transformation of waste collection within Wiltshire. Following 
this item members’ requested a further update to outline the delivery of the 
project, which was programmed to see the roll out of plastic and card collections 
in the north, east and west of the county. 
 
The Committee is invited to discuss the delivery of these changes and whether 
there are any lessons to be learnt as further changes are rolled out in 2012 in the 
north, east and south of the county. 

 

8. Amenities Consultancy and Works Contracts  

 At its meeting in November the Committee received an overview of the options 
linked to upcoming decisions towards the Highways & Amenities Contracts. 
 
The Committee at the conclusion of the debate invited the Cabinet member to 
return to its January meeting to provide a further update on the scope of the 
contracts before initiating the tendering process. 

 

9.   Scrutiny of the Planning Services Peer Review (Pages 21 - 22) 

 

10.   Forward Work Programme (Pages 23 - 24) 

 A copy of the draft Forward Work Programme is attached for consideration. 

 

11.   Date of next Meeting  

 

12.   Urgent Items  

 Any other items of business which the Chairman agrees to consider as a matter 
of urgency. 

 

 PART II 

 Items during whose consideration it is recommended that the public 
should be excluded because of the likelihood that exempt information 

would be disclosed 
 

None 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

ENVIRONMENT SELECT COMMITTEE 
 
 
 

 
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE ENVIRONMENT SELECT COMMITTEE MEETING 
HELD ON 1 NOVEMBER 2011 AT COUNCIL CHAMBER, BRADLEY ROAD, 
TROWBRIDGE. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Chuck Berry, Cllr Rosemary Brown, Cllr Nigel Carter (Chairman), 
Cllr Christopher Cochrane, Cllr Peter Doyle, Cllr Jose Green, Cllr Alan Hill (Vice Chairman), 
Cllr Chris Humphries, Cllr Tom James MBE, Cllr Howard Marshall, Cllr Ian McLennan, 
Cllr Stephen Oldrieve and Cllr Leo Randall 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Julian Johnson, Cllr Keith Humphries, Cllr Richard Gamble, Cllr Dick Tonge 
 
  

 
185. Apologies and Substitutions 

 
There were no apologies. 
 

186. Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 09 September 2011 were approved and 
signed as a correct record, subject to, 
 
Cllr Stephen Oldrieve asking a question relating to Minute 179, Carbon 
Reduction Commitment Energy Efficiency Scheme, on whether the Council’s 
net investment of £3.5 million over 5 years would be capped. Officers agreed to 
write to Cllr Toby Sturgis, Cabinet Member for Waste, Property Environment 
and Development Control Services, for a response. 
 

187. Declarations of Interests 
 
None. 
 

188. Chairman's Announcements 
 
There were no announcements. 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

189. Public Participation and Councillors Questions 
 
The meeting was presented with public questions submitted to the Committee 
by Mrs Wilmot, Salisbury, regarding the Air Quality Strategy with particular 
interest to Salisbury, which had been answered in writing by the Head of Public 
Protection (Food and Environment), as seen in Appendix A. 
 
The Service Head also stated that Mrs Wilmot had asked for and received a 
further written response from officers beyond that contained in Appendix A. 
 

190. Air Quality Strategy 
 
The Committee has held a longstanding interest in the development of the 
Council’s Air Quality Strategy, considering a draft version in July 6 2010 and a 
further update at the July 21 2011 meeting. 
 
Cabinet, on December 13, will be recommended to approve the Air Quality 
Strategy before its being submitted to Council for adoption. The Committee has 
an opportunity to review the document whilst it is in draft form and recommend 
as appropriate to the Cabinet member any amendments that it is felt would 
enhance the Strategy. 
 
The Cabinet Member for Public Health and Protection Services, Cllr Keith 
Humphries, presented the draft Air Quality Strategy with input from the Joint 
Director of Public Health and Public Protection. The Director welcomed the 
opportunity to involve scrutiny members in developing the project. 
 
The report emphasized that air quality in Wiltshire is in general very good, with 
only a few hotspots of concern, and that the biggest pollutant factor for the 
county is vehicular traffic.  
 
A debate followed, wherein it was confirmed the Air Quality Strategy is a high 
level strategy, but that, on its own, would not deliver its aims. It will require the 
more holistic involvement from Council teams, local groups and the community. 
In response to queries, the Joint Director for Public Health and Public Protection 
offered members the opportunity to join local groups such as the Devizes 
Community Area Partnership, Transport Sub-group, to assist in implementation 
of the strategy. The Committee further discussed the integration of the Air 
Quality Strategy within local, team and service plans and strategies, and the 
need for updated reports to be presented regularly to achieve the aims of the 
report. 
 
The committee also discussed the need to emphasize the context of the risks 
resulting from poor air quality by showing Wiltshire’s situation against the 
national context, and recommended that this and the associated health risks be 
included in the report. 
 
 

Page 2



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
It was: 
 
Resolved 
 

1) To thank the Cabinet member for providing the opportunity to 

contribute towards the development of the Air Quality Strategy; 

 

2) To endorse the content of the strategy; 

 

3) To ask the Cabinet member to agree that the aims and delivery of 

the Air Quality Strategy are integrated into the relevant service 

delivery plans; 

 

4) To invite an update on the delivery of the Air Quality Strategy in 

May 2012; 

 

5) To recommend that the Air Quality Strategy includes health risk 

charts and Wiltshire’s situation as seen against the national 

position. 

191. Car Parking Charges 
 
The Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport, Cllr Dick Tonge, was in 
attendance as requested by the Environment Select Committee held on 06 
September 2011. Cllr Tonge informed the committee that the report in the 
agenda pack had been revised ahead of its consideration by Full Council on 08 
November 2011. He outlined the revisions to the report as follows: 
 

• A new paragraph (paragraph 8) and appendix (Appendix 3) have been 
added detailing proposals made by Salisbury City Council, Salisbury City 
Centre Management and others that were considered by Cabinet on 18 
October. 
 

• Chart 1, Table 2 and paragraphs 36-38 have been amended to take 
account of revised and updated car parking data. 

 

• A new appendix (Appendix 5) has been added outlining how the Council 
is supporting regeneration activities in Wiltshire’s towns. 

 

• A new paragraph (paragraph 40) and appendix (Appendix 7) have been 
added providing car park ticket sales and income for each town from 
April 2010 to September 2011  

 
The key points of the report, Countrywide Analysis of Car Parking Charges, 
highlighted by the Cabinet member were: 

Page 3



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 

• The report’s conclusions were that car parking charges were not of 
primary significance in relation to retail health, and that the primary factor 
encouraging economic success was the level and range of retail services 
on offer to visitors. 
 

• Shop vacancies across Wiltshire’s market towns had declined with the 
exception of Salisbury. 

 

• Within Salisbury, footfall levels had stabilised and undergone recovery 
since February 2011 after months of decline. 

 

• Short stay ticket sales have reduced by 5.8% as shown in like-for-like 
data tables for On and Off Street Parking Ticket Sales in 2010 and 2011. 
The figures excluded the areas of West Wiltshire and Salisbury. 

 

• In Appendix 7 figures were presented showing town by town ticket sales. 
It was emphasized that long stay ticket sales were down, and that sales 
were down for short stay even in some areas where prices had remained 
unchanged. 

 

• Appendix 8 presented mixed results where other local authorities 
reduced car parking charges. 

 
A verbal update was provided on the impact on bus services of changes in car 
parking income. In Salisbury there had been an increase in the use of general 
bus services and of Park and Ride, but figures for the rest of the county April 
2010- April 2011 showed a decrease of 9%. Carshare Wiltshire was up 73% in 
2011. 
 
Where car parking charges produced a surplus this money was hypothecated 
for use by bus services but in the case of a shortfall these monies would be 
found from the departmental budget. The committee was advised this 
arrangement was a legal arrangement. 
 
Overall there was a £500,000 shortfall of income from on- and off-street parking 
for 2011-2012. 
 
A debate followed, wherein concern was raised in relation to the time the 
committee had to digest the revised report. The committee also discussed the 
possibility that on street parking in residential estates had risen in response to 
parking charges. The committee was informed of the Cabinet Member’s intent 
to promote the use of season tickets. 
 
With regards to the decline in shop vacancies, it was highlighted that the impact 
of the increase in charity shops within those figures had not been fully 
assessed. The committee also further debated the level of support given to 
various towns for Economic Development and Regeneration activities, including 

Page 4



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

the cost to the Council of CCTV systems in different areas. The Chair requested 
a written response from the Service Director for Economy and Enterprise to 
provide this information in more detail.  
 
Several measures to improve the service for users of Council car parking sites 
were discussed, including the need to improve signage at car parking sites. 
Some members of the committee felt that in their localities the perception of the 
impact of the changes was potentially damaging the Council’s reputation. 
 
The committee noted that the issue would be debated fully at Full Council on 08 
November 2011. 
 
It was: 
 
Resolved: 
 

1) To thank the Cabinet member for the opportunity to contribute to 
the Car Parking review; 

 
2) To recognise the current economic climate and the challenges it 

presents the Wiltshire public and its business sector; 
 

3) To recognise that due to the legislative process any immediate 
policy changes on car parking pricing will impact on the 2012/2013 
budget; and in response to ask the Cabinet member to inform 
Council on the service implications of the current (2011/12) shortfall 
on the Car Parking budget. 

 
192. Forward Work Programme 

 
The Forward Work Programme was noted and received several amendments. 
Further to minute 190, it was amended to reflect the invitation for the Air Quality 
team to appear before the Committee in May 2012. Members also requested 
clarification that the Climate Change Adaptation Plan would be discussed in 
March 2012, and it was requested that the Local Development Framework in 
the form of the Core Plan was added to the work programme for January 2012.  
 
In response to developments regarding the updating of the rail system in 
Wiltshire, including the electrification of lines, and the implications for the 
county, it was further requested that an item be included at a future date to 
discuss the issue of Rail Travel and Network Line Electrification. Lastly, 
Members discussed the issue of the Community Infrastructure Levy appearing 
before the Committee at a future date to discuss the levy that can be charged 
on new developments in order to support local infrastructure, and it was clarified 
that a date could not be confirmed until legislative changes and national 
guidance were finalised and a report could be created.  
 
 

Page 5



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
193. Date of next Meeting 

 
The date of the next meeting was confirmed as 10 January 2012, at the Council 
Offices, Bradley Road, Trowbridge, from 10:30am. 
 

194. Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

195. Exclusion of the Press and Public 
 

196. Amenities Consultancy and Works Contracts 
 
The Committee was asked to consider a confidential report regarding the 
upcoming decisions for the Highways and Amenities contracts, which had been 
reviewed to consider future options for the service. Any comments will be fed 
back to the Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport ahead of the Cabinet 
meeting of 15 November 2011. 
 
The Committee welcomed the opportunity to comment upon and be involved in 
advance of a decision being made, and examined the report. Details were 
provided on the costs of current contracts, and the staffing, environmental, legal 
and other implications of the proposals. 
 
A verbal update was provided on the current financial position of one of the 
contractors, Mouchel, as a result of the economy relating to their stock and 
share price. It was confirmed there were no service reasons for concern. 
 
It was clarified to the committee that the contract would need to be advertised 
across the EU as required for contracts exceeding the OJEU threshold of £1 
million as laid out in the European Public Contracts Directive 2004/18/EC. 
Members were reassured that regardless of who received the contract, local 
Wiltshire operators would likely remain the same, and this was to be 
encouraged. 
 
In answer to queries, Members were also reassured of the flexibility of any 
chosen option to keep down contractual costs and to take into account localism 
factors, and officers expressed confidence of attracting sizable interest from 
bidders. 
 
It was: 
 
Resolved 
 

1) To thank the Cabinet member for providing an opportunity for the 

Committee to contribute to the review of the existing and future 

Page 6



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

expenditure of and service requirements of the highways and 

amenities functions; 

2) To endorse the proposals contained within the report; 

 

3) To update Scrutiny in January 2012 once the scope of the contract 

and the procurement processes have been developed further along 

the OJEU process. 

 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  10.30 am - 1.40 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Kieran Elliott, of Democratic Services, 
direct line (01225) 718504, e-mail kieran.elliott@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



CM09347/F  

Wiltshire Council 
 

Environment Select Committee 
10 January 2012 
 

 

 
Waste and Recycling Collection Service 

Harmonisation Update 
 

 

 
Executive Summary 
 
The significant project to both harmonise and improve the Waste Collection and 
Recycling services residents receive is moving to the second phase. This report 
highlights progress made to date and considers issues to be addressed as part of 
the completion of this work over the next few months. 
 
The report includes a brief update on the project to construct a Mechanical Biological 
Treatment plant to divert some of Wiltshire’s waste away from landfill. 
 
 

 
 

 
Proposal 
 
That the Committee note this update. 
 
 

 
 

 
Reason for Proposal  
 
The Committee requested a further update on delivery of the Waste Transformation 
Programme.   
 
 

 
 

 
TRACY CARTER 
Service Director, Waste Management  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 9



CM09347/F  

 
Wiltshire Council       
 
Environment Select Committee 
10 January 2012 

 
 

Waste and Recycling Collection Service  
Harmonisation Update 

 
 
Purpose of Report 
 
1. To: 
 

(i) Respond to the request received from the Committee to provide an 
update on the work taking place to deliver a single Waste Collection and 
Recycling Service across Wiltshire. 

 
(ii) Provide a brief update on progress towards the construction of a 

Mechanical Biological Treatment (MBT) plant. 
 
Background 
 
2. The One Council bid document ‘next steps’ contained commitments to 

harmonise waste collection and recycling arrangements across Wiltshire. 
Potential cost savings were identified, with the commitment that these would be 
reinvested in service enhancements to provide a consistent service across the 
whole Council area. 

 
3. Public consultation on a preferred service option was carried out over the 

summer of 2010.  Results indicated broad support with 72% of those 
responding in favour. 

 
4. Work to progress the implementation of the preferred option was authorised by 

Cabinet on 19 October 2010.  The key features of the new service agreed by 
Cabinet are: 

 
(i) collection of residual waste becomes fortnightly across all areas 

(currently still weekly in the north and south of the county); 
 
(ii) a kerbside collection of plastic bottles and card will be introduced to all 

areas (at that time only the south received this service); 
 
(iii) a non-chargeable opt-in garden waste kerbside collection will be 

introduced across all areas (previously this service was charged for 
north, east and south of the county); 

 
(iv) black box collections of dry mixed recyclables will continue as now for all 

households. 
 

Page 10



CM09347/F  

5. Following the announcement of the Comprehensive Spending Review (CSR) in 
October 2010 the Council was advised that savings required were likely to be 
front-loaded into 2011-12.  Further work was carried out on a range of 
proposals that would help delay expenditure.  Following the detailed settlement, 
these were considered on 10 January 2011 at both Cabinet Capital Assets 
Committee and a further Cabinet sub-group meeting.  This resulted in a revised 
implementation timetable for rollout of the new service package during the latter 
half of 2011-12.  

 
6. Table 1 below sets out the implementation timetable 
 

 Table 1 

Area Material Date collections start 

 

North 

Plastic bottles and card 

 

Garden waste and fortnightly 
collection of residual waste 

10 October 2011 

 

5 March 2012 

 

West 

 

Plastic bottles and card 

 

7 November 2011 

 

East 

Plastic bottles and card 

 

Garden Waste 

28 November 2011 

 

12 March 2012 

 

South 

 

Garden Waste and fortnightly 
collection of residual waste 

 

 

26 March 2012 

 
7.     A key element in Wiltshire’s strategy to reduce the amount of waste sent to 

landfill has been identified as being fulfilled by the building of a MBT plant 
which will allow 60,000 tonnes of household waste to be treated, rather than 
sent for deposit in landfill.  

 
8. The Hills Group received planning permission for the MBT plant to be 

constructed on the Northacre Trading Estate, Westbury in March 2009.  
Wiltshire Cabinet approved the signing of the Waste Management (Landfill 
Diversion) Contract at their meeting on 15 February 2011. 

 
9.  The contract was signed in April 2011 and is based on the construction of the 

£20 million facility on the Northacre Trading Estate, Westbury.  Building works  
commenced in August 2011.  Significant construction work has taken place, at 
ground level and below, and the plant is expected to be fully operational by the 
late summer of 2013.  

 
10. The Cabinet Member for Waste, Property, Environment and Development 

Control Services presented a report to update Environment Select Committee 
on progress at its meeting held on 21 July 2011.  The Committee requested a 
further update on delivery of the Waste Transformation Programme to its 
November meeting.  Due to the workload of the Committee this item was 
subsequently deferred to the meeting to be held on 10 January 2012. 

 

Page 11



CM09347/F  

Main Considerations for the Committee 
 
11.     The following paragraphs set out current progress and some of the issues 

experienced and managed during the first phase of the waste and recycling 
collection service changes and makes final preparations for the second phase 
involving garden waste and non-recycled rubbish. 

 
Plastic bottles and card rollout 
 
12.    Production of the new blue lidded plastic bottle and cardboard bins started in 

late July with the Council starting to take delivery during August. This allowed a 
stock to be built up, at the former Royal Wootton Bassett Highways Depot, 
before deliveries to households commenced in early September in the north. 

 
13.   Building up a ‘buffer stock’ was subsequently demonstrated to be a prudent 

contingency measure when the supplier (MGB Plastics) suffered a major 
mechanical breakdown on one of the two production lines dedicated to 
Wiltshire’s bins.  Production was significantly impacted, and yet deliveries to 
households were able to continue with the result that the vast majority of 
residents – in excess of 99% - were provided with a bin before collections 
started. 

 
14.   The delay in deliveries which started in the north also affected deliveries in the 

west and east as the service was unable to fully recover. This has resulted in 
some residents only receiving bins a day before start of collections. However, 
mitigation measures introduced by the Waste Service significantly reduced the 
number of residents who would otherwise have not had a new bin by their 
collection day. These are set out below. 

 

• Once the production facilities were repaired the bin supplier was 
requested to use an additional line for Wiltshire’s bins for a short period 
to replenish stocks. 

 

• Bin deliveries were rescheduled so that deliveries to properties were 
made in strict accordance with the design of the collection rounds. For 
example, this meant that properties due to receive their new collections 
from the Monday of the first week of the collection cycle received their 
bins first. 

 

• Delivery capacity was increased to ensure no lag between the Council 
taking possession of the bins and their deployment to residents. Many 
Waste Collection staff worked weekends, and assistance was sought 
from, and provided by, Street Scene staff.  Additionally, staff and 
vehicles were made available by contractors including, Focsa, English 
Landscapes and Ringway. These were particularly valuable in allowing 
timely deliveries to the more remote rural locations. A record has been 
kept of all costs incurred - both from contractors and in-house staff - in 
supplementing bin deliveries beyond the capability of the supplier and 
these will be recharged as permitted by the liquidated damages 
provisions within the contract with MGB. 

 

Page 12



CM09347/F  

• Some residents called and asked for their new bins to be taken away. 
These were collected and redeployed as quickly as possible 
(approximately 1400 households either opted out prior to the rollout, or 
requested their delivered bin be retrieved). 

 

• Daily production and delivery reports have been provided throughout the 
rollout and these have been used to provide an up-to-date projection of 
delivery completion by town and locality to ensure early identification of 
properties that might not have received a bin before their first collection 
was due. 

 
15. A key planning application was required to support the service changes for a 

temporary change of use of a warehouse at Portemarsh Trading Estate, 
Calne, to deal with the delivery and bulking of plastic bottles and cardboard 
collected in east, north and west Wiltshire.  Planning permission was granted 
at the end of August.  Despite break-ins and vandalism during the short 
period for works, the building was made ready in time and is now receiving 
collections daily.  Drivers have adhered to the agreed route plans in all but 
two reported instances, when training was repeated.  Baling equipment is 
now in place to reduce the number of outward loads.  A further improvement 
is due by the end of January, when new sorting and baling equipment should 
be operational which will allow collected materials to be sent direct to 
commercial reprocessing facilities.  Due to the decision that the collection 
service should collect on bank holidays, a Section 73 application has been 
submitted by Hills to reflect the needs of the collection service. If approved, 
this would not lead to the facility being open on more days; it would open on 
named bank holidays but would no longer need to open on following 
Saturdays as currently permitted.  

 
Garden and residual waste 
 
16.   During February and March 2012 the second phase of the rollout will take 

place. This will see fortnightly collections of residual waste introduced into the 
north and south, and opt-in, non-charged, fortnightly garden waste collections 
introduced into north, south, and east Wiltshire (residents of west Wiltshire 
already have a fortnightly, non-charged garden waste collection). 

 
17.  Robust discussions have taken place with the bin supplier which build upon 

lessons learned during the rollout of the plastic bottle and card service, and 
contingency arrangements were requested of and supplied by MGB Plastics.  
Preparations included the development of a detailed plan for delivering to only 
those customers who had opted-in to the garden waste service by 
30 November 2011.  It should be noted that this is inherently more complex and 
resource intensive than the area-by-area approach used during the plastic 
bottle and card deliveries.  The dispersed nature of the households signed up 
for the garden waste service will serve to severely reduce any time advantage 
gained by having lower numbers to deliver to. 

 
18.  Members will recall that promotional material advertised a deadline of             

30 September for opting into the garden waste collections. At the end of this 
period approximately 40,000 households had opted in.  Requests continued to 
arrive – at a slower pace – after this date and so it was considered prudent to 
place an initial order for 55,000 bins. This will allow a large stock and should  

Page 13



CM09347/F  

also ensure that all residents who opted in by 30 November (when the 
database was ‘frozen’ to allow maps to be produced for the supplier) receive a 
bin during the initial phase of deliveries, during February and March.  

 
19.  It is expected that many other households will elect to sign up for the service 

once the first bins are delivered – partly in response to seeing their neighbours 
taking delivery, and partly due to seasonal climate changes that heighten 
awareness of the use that can be made of such a service. These households 
will be invited to sign-up for a second phase that will see bins delivered from 
late May 2012. 

 
20.  Construction of a new composting pad at Parkgate Farm, Purton, has been 

progressed to provide capacity for the new garden waste collections.  The 
current pad at Lower Compton is used almost to capacity. This is situated in a 
remote rural location and issues such as odour are not anticipated. The pad 
has now been completed, with a contract variation and payments having been 
agreed.  Deliveries of garden waste are expected to commence during Spring 
2012, as garden waste tonnages increase with the expanded collections.  

 

MBT Plant 
 

21. Excavation for the MBT plant has been completed.  The concrete floor slab for 
the reception hall has been poured and the reinforcing steel has all been fixed 
for the slab for the bio-treatment hall.  Work has now started on constructing 
the walls.  The surface water drainage for the site has been completed.  In 
preparing the site the ground was treated to stabilise it meaning that work has 
progressed during periods of wet weather.  This has reduced the number of 
lorry movements to and from site as less earth has been dug out and less 
replacement material brought in. 

 
22. The order has been placed for the structural steelwork and for the cranes that 

will move the waste within the plant, for example from the reception hall to the 
treatment hall.  The construction of the plant remains on programme. 

 

Performance 
 

23.  The service changes and the MBT plant will help drive considerable 
improvements in the Council’s performance on a range of measures. 

 
(i) Wiltshire’s Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy sets a target for 

an increase in recycling to 50% of all household waste by 2020.  Current 
performance is 41%.  The service changes should allow the 50% target 
to be achieved by 2014-15.  This will place Wiltshire Council in the top 
quartile for all Unitary and County Waste Disposal Authorities. 
 

(ii) At the time of drafting, plastic bottle and cardboard collections have 
commenced in all areas with early data available for the north, west and 
east areas. These show that over 700 tonnes a month on average were 
collected county-wide during the first two months.  This is hugely 
encouraging given that it might be expected tonnages will increase 
further once the north and south move to a fortnightly collection of 
residual waste. 
 

Page 14



CM09347/F  

(iii) The changes will drive significant reductions in volumes of waste being 
sent to landfill and should place the Council in the top quartile of 
comparable authorities.   
 

(iv) The MBT facility will receive 60,000 tonnes each year of municipal waste 
from households in the county, and in doing so help the county’s 
taxpayers avoid Landfill Tax, which will cost £80 per tonne by 2014.  It 
should reduce the proportion of Wiltshire’s municipal waste sent to 
landfill to less than 25%, from a current performance of about 37%.  

  

Communications 
 

24. Multiple channels have been used to both inform and promote the new services 
to as many residents as possible.  These include the Council’s website, local 
newspapers, local radio, area boards, road shows and leaflets mailed direct to 
households. The emphasis has now shifted to informing residents of the opt-in 
garden waste service and, in the north and south, the move to fortnightly 
collection of household residual waste. 

 

25. The approach is graduated with general awareness raising first and becoming 
more specific and detailed as we move closer to service commencement dates.  
For example, approximately two weeks before new collections start 
instructional letters that will contain collection calendars specific to each 
household will be delivered. This approach will be supported by a 
comprehensive campaign, some highlights of which are included in Table 2, 
below. 

 

Table 2           Key Communications activities 
 

Communication 
channel 

Aim Timescale 

Garden waste sticker 
(underside of bin lid) 

Provide guidance on 
materials that can and cannot 
be placed in the bin 

February – March, 
with bin deliveries 

Road shows Engage residents and  
provide information on 
garden waste and fortnightly 
residual collections 

February onwards 

Area Boards Engage and inform local 
residents and other interested 
parties 

Ongoing throughout 
project 

Bin hangers (placed on 
residual bins at time of 
last weekly collection) 

Remind north and south 
residents of the move to 
fortnightly collection 

February - March 

Radio advertising 
(Heart & Spire FM) 

Promote service changes January - March 

Wiltshire Residents 
Magazine 
 

Advice on opt-in garden and 
fortnightly residual collections 

Spring 

Housing Association 
Magazines 
 

Advise residents in housing 
association accommodation 
(including flats) of service 
changes 

Ongoing 

Page 15



CM09347/F  

26.      In support of the service changes, the Waste Management Service has worked 
very closely with Customer Services staff.  CSU staff have responded positively 
and allowed back-office Waste staff to remain focussed on delivering the new 
collections.  Scripts are constantly being developed and modified to ensure 
CSU staff have the latest information to provide to residents. Call volumes are 
being monitored to ensure their responses are in place to provide a quick 
response to calls at all times.  Data gathered shows fairly predictable patterns 
with call numbers increasing in line with implementation dates for changes and 
bin deliveries.  Since the beginning of September 2011, daily calls handled 
have typically been in the region of 200-300, with peaks of around 400 calls per 
day.  CSU management have ensured temporary additional staff have been 
available to meet increased demand and, to date, call volumes are reported as 
manageable. 

 
Budget 
 
27. Regular further reviews of the budget are carried out to take account of updated 

cost information and revised forecasts of landfill tonnage following the 
introduction of the service changes.  Regular cost updates are being produced 
and at present the service expects to be able to fund the changes from current 
budget provision. 

 
Detailed Policy Issues 
 
28. It was always recognised that special arrangements would need to be 

developed for residents in flats and other types of dwelling with limited access 
and space, such as terraced housing without gardens, where traditional bins 
cannot be readily accommodated.  Although the October 2010 Cabinet report 
contained guidance on exceptions, and highlighted the alternatives available, it 
did not contain any detail of how this would be implemented.  This was later 
progressed by a Cabinet Member Decision which ensures that: 

 

• The Council continues to comply fully with the requirements of the 
Household Waste Recycling Act 2003; 
 

• residents in these types of dwelling receive a broadly equivalent suite of 
services to those in other types of housing; 

 

• health and safety considerations are fully observed. 
 
29. Discussions with Housing Associations have taken place and staff members’ 

local knowledge has been relied on to draft an initial list of such 
accommodation for site assessment where necessary.  Members of Salisbury 
Community Area Board have been consulted about such properties within their 
divisions.  To ensure none are missed, a request for concerned residents to 
make contact with the Council, if they have not been contacted prior to the start 
of the rollout of service changes, is being included within promotional 
communications. 

 
 
 
 

Page 16



CM09347/F  

30. Due to the need for Waste Technical Officers to visit certain premises (in 
conjunction with an officer from Hills to ensure black box arrangements are also 
agreed) service changes for residents in flats may not proceed to the same 
programme as the main rollout.  With the available resources this is 
unavoidable.  It is expected that completion will take place within three, and 
certainly no more than six months of the rollout to other households not 
requiring visits and special arrangements. To date, in excess of 50 visits have 
been carried out and these will continue over the coming months. Many such 
properties will be provided with alternatives to the standard wheeled bins due to 
the assessment determining that space and access are inadequate. 

 
31. The new opt-in garden waste service allows households to purchase additional 

capacity at an initial annual charge of approximately £30 (the first provided bin 
being at no additional charge).  The former District Councils each had different 
policies, which resulted in some households being able to purchase more than 
one additional bin, whilst in the west the former Council provided a non-
charged service but allowed no additional bins.  In future, residents will be 
permitted to purchase one additional bin only. This will help contain the cost to 
the Council (which has to pay for additional composting capacity) whilst 
allowing for the continued promotion of more environmentally sustainable 
alternatives such as home composters.  Expressions of interest have been 
received in respect of a second paid-for garden bin and these are being 
recorded. To date, numbers are low, but this can be expected to increase once 
the initial phase of deliveries commences. It is anticipated that second bins will 
be delivered from May 2012, alongside a second phase of bins for those 
households missing the initial opt-in deadline for the non-charged service. 

 
32. Other policy and process points to note include: 
 

• The standard residual waste bin capacity of 180 litres will, upon request, 
be increased, subject to satisfaction of certain criteria, to 240 litres; 

 
• Where households can satisfy more stringent criteria the 180 litre bin 

may be swapped for a 360 litre bin (this will normally require a visit from 
a Waste Technical Officer); 

 
• Any authorised increase in capacity will be subject to regular review to 

ensure the circumstances warranting the increase remain in place; 
 

• Households with additional bins in excess of the agreed limits, due to 
former District Council policies, will be gradually moved to the new 
standard capacity, in line with the protocol, giving them some time to 
adjust. 

 
• Residents in the west, where 240 litre bins have previously been the 

standard, are now receiving 180 litre replacement bins when required, in 
line with the published policy. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 17



CM09347/F  

 
Environmental Impact of the Proposal 
 

33. The impacts of the service changes on the environment are described in detail 
in the report to Cabinet in October 2010.  In brief, they are essentially twofold. 

 
(i) Recycling has a lesser environmental impact than use of waste for 

energy recovery, or disposal in landfill.  The project will provide the 
means for increasing the Council’s average recycling rate from 41% 
currently, to around 50%. 

 
(ii) Whilst vehicle miles to collect the increased volumes of plastic bottles 

and card and garden waste will increase, this is likely to be offset by a 
reduction in vehicle miles to collect residual waste and in mileage  
travelled by residents to local bring sites and Household Recycling 
Centres.  Moreover, the reduced tonnage of residual waste being 
deposited in landfill will lead to a decrease in the production of harmful 
greenhouse gases. 

 
34. The environmental impacts of the MBT have formerly been fully identified in 

reports to the Council’s Cabinet.  In brief, MBT with energy recovery was 
identified as a best practicable environmental option in the adopted Regional 
Waste Strategy and as one of the appropriate secondary recovery methods in 
the Wiltshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy.  It is estimated that 
the Hills’ Northacre facility will save significant Council lorry miles each year as 
waste from the west of Wiltshire will no longer need to be transported to Hills’ 
landfill site at Lower Compton.  By reducing the miles that these refuse 
collection vehicles travel, the facility has the potential to make a reduction in 
Wiltshire’s carbon footprint.  Initially, the refuse derived fuel (RDF) produced 
will be transported by road to port and then shipped to Germany for use in 
energy from waste plants, but it is anticipated that the production of RDF will 
encourage the creation of a more sustainable local market. 
 

Equality and Diversity Impact of the Proposal 
 
35. No specific impacts have been identified.  
 
Risk Assessment 
 
36. Any change to waste collection carries the risk of disruption and some adverse 

reaction from the public and the media.  A carefully planned rollout 
accompanied by a comprehensive communications campaign reduces, but 
cannot eliminate, this risk. 

 
Financial Implications 
 
37. There are no specific implications arising from this report.  

 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 18



CM09347/F  

Legal Implications 
 
38. No specific additions to the implications outlined in the October 2010 report to 

Cabinet have been identified.  Legal and procurement advice has been sought 
and obtained as necessary to vary existing contracts with suppliers.   

 

 

 
TRACY CARTER 
Service Director, Waste Management  
 
Report Author: 
John Geary 
Head of Waste Management Transformation 

 

 
The following unpublished documents have been relied on in the preparation of 
this Report: 
 
 None 
 
Appendices: 
 
 None 

Page 19



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



WILTSHIRE   COUNCIL 
     
ENVIRONMENT SELECT   COMMITTEE 
 
10   JANUARY   2012 

 
SCRUTINY OF THE DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PEER REVIEW 

 
Purpose of Report 
 
1. To recommend that the Committee forms a Task Group to review the response of 

the Council to the recent Peer Review of Wiltshire’s Planning Service.  
 
Background 
 
2. A small team of elected members and officers from other (peer) local authorities 

reviewed the Council’s planning service 6-8 September, 2011. This exercise took 
place at the invitation of the Council. 

  
3. As well as meeting various officers and elected members the review team also 

interviewed Councillors Nigel Carter and Tony Deane on behalf of the scrutiny 
function. 

 
4. The outcome of the review was published in a bullet point style in mid/late 

September. The Council then had an opportunity to respond to the initial findings 
in advance of the more formal report being submitted. Under the leadership of the 
Service Director and Cabinet member an action plan was developed to respond 
to the review and this will be the key reference point for any scrutiny activity. 

 
5. In conjunction to this on the 17 November, 2011 – the Organisation and 

Resources considered the final report of the Section 106 Task Group. Included 
within the subsequent recommendations was a request to the Environment 
Select Committee to create a Task Group to monitor the delivery of the Action 
Plan to emerge from the recent peer review of the Development Control service. 

 
Matters for consideration 
 
6. In advance of the decision of the Committee contact has been made with the 

members of the S106 Task Group (which has now disbanded) and there has 
been positive feedback in respect of serving on this new planning related Task 
Group. 
 
Terms of reference 
 

7. The proposed terms of reference have been kept at a high level to enable the 
Task Group to prioritise a more detailed programme of work at the initial scoping 
meeting, where the membership will be introduced to the review outcome and the 
Council’s action plan:- 
 

‘To review and support the delivery of Wiltshire Council’s 
response to the September 2011 peer planning review’. 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 9

Page 21



Recommendation 
 

8. The Committee is recommended to form a Task Group to review the Council’s 
response to its recent peer review and to invite an interim report after 3 months of 
its first meeting. 

 
 
 
 

Report Author – Ceri Williams Senior Scrutiny Officer 
 
Paul Kelly – Scrutiny Manager and Designated Scrutiny Officer  

Page 22



 

 

Environment Select Committee 
Rolling Work Plan from January 2012 

 

SUBJECTS 
COMMITTEE/ 
TASK GROUP 

NEXT DATE TO  
O & S 

COMMITTEE 

SPECIFIC ISSUES FOR 
DISCUSSION 

 
REPORT AUTHOR 

CABINET MEMBER/ 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER 

Procurement & 
Commissioning 
(Standing) 

Task Group 
 

Ongoing 
 

To provide an update following 
agreement by all select 

committees on the formation of 
a single Task Group that 
reports directly to the 

Organisation & Resources 
Select Committee. 

Variable Cllr John Noeken 

Transformation of 
Waste 

Collection Service 
Committee Jan 12 

To provide an update on the 
roll out of the new Waste 

collection services for Wiltshire 
John Geary Cllr Toby Sturgis 

Procurement of the 
new Highways and 
Amenities contracts 

Committee Jan 12 

To provide a further update on 
the preferred model of delivery 
for the services in advance of 
the start of the tendering 

exercise. 

Peter Binley Cllr Dick Tonge 

Core Strategy Committee Jan 12 
To scrutinise the draft Core 

Strategy before it is considered 
by Council in February. 

Georgina 
Clampitt-Dix 

Cllr Toby Sturgis 

A
g
e
n

d
a
 Ite

m
 1

0

P
a
g
e
 2

3



 

 

SUBJECTS 
COMMITTEE/ 
TASK GROUP 

NEXT DATE TO  
O & S 

COMMITTEE 

SPECIFIC ISSUES FOR 
DISCUSSION 

 
REPORT AUTHOR 

CABINET MEMBER/ 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER 

Real Time 
Passenger 

Information (RTPI) 
Committee March 2012 

To receive an update report on 
the GPRS system in 18 

months to provide clarity on 
the effectiveness of the new 
system (as agreed at the 
September 2010 Select 

Committee) 

Liz Douglas Cllr Dick Tonge 

Community 
Infrastructure Levy 

Committee May 2012? 
To monitor implementation of 

the CIL 
Georgina 

Clampitt-Dix 
Cllr Toby Sturgis 

Climate Change 
Adaptation Plan 

Committee May 2012? 
To receive details once 

available. 
Ariane Crampton Cllr Toby Sturgis 

Low Carbon 
Transition Plan 

Committee May 2012? 
To receive details once 

available. 
Ariane Crampton Cllr Toby Sturgis 

Renewable Energy 
Plan 

Committee May 2012? 
To receive details once 

available. 
Ariane Crampton Cllr Toby Sturgis 

 

P
a

g
e
 2

4


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	7 Waste Collection Service Harmonisation Update
	9 Scrutiny of the Planning Services Peer Review
	10 Forward Work Programme

